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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT LT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLORADO

Civil Action No.

DAVID L. HILDEBRAND, an individual,

Plaintiff,

VS.

TITAN, and;
STAR ASIA-USA LLC

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff, David Hildebrand, an individual, alleges as follows:

I. PARTIES

1. Plaintiff, David Hildebrand, is an individual and resident of this judicial district.

2. Defendants, TITAN and STAR ASIA-USA LLC are believed to be corporations
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Washington.
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I1. JURISTICTION AND VENUE

3. The Court has original jurisdiction over plaintiff’s First through Fifth Claims for
relief pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1338(a).

4. Venue in this District is proper under 28 U.S.C. 1400(2) in that said defendants are
engaged in commercial activities in this District, and has purposefully availed itself of the
privilege of conducting business in this district, to an extent sufficient to satisfy the

requirements of establishing “residence” for the purpose of the above statute.

III. OPERATIVE FACTS

5. Plaintiff, David Hildebrand (hereinafier “Hildebrand™), is the inventor of certain know-
how for the removal of damaged bolts, lugnuts and other threaded connecting devices,
including the removal of devices where either the threads or outer edges thereof have been
damaged so that they cannot be removed using conventional tools.

6. Hildebrand set out to develop the device incorporating the invention, which Hildebrand
intended to exploit on the commercial market for profit.

7. On April 14, 1998, Hildebrand’s invention was granted protection under United States
Patent No. 5,737,981, entitled “REMOVAL DEVICE FOR THREADED CONNECTING
DEVICES.” A copy of said Patent (hereinafter “the 981 patent™) is attached hereto, labeled

Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -2-
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8. Hildebrand is informed and believes that defendants TITAN and STAR ASIA-USA LLC
have, or are now engaged; in the manufacturing, advertisement, offering of sale, sale, and/or

distribution of devices which infringe the Hildebrand ‘981 patent.

9.  On information and belief, the trade names under which the defendants’ infringing devices

have been manufactured, advertised, offered for sale, sold and/or distributed include; “Lug

Nut Removal Tool” PN-21090, as indicated by attached Exhibit-“B”.

IV. CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Infringement of U.S. Patent No. 5,737,981 against Defendant)

10. Hildebrand hereby incorporates paragraphs 1 through 9 as though fully set forth at this
point.
11. On the basis of the actions of defendants as alleged above in paragraphs 8 and 9,

defendant has violated Hildebrand’s rights under 35 U.S.C. 271(a) by making, using, selling
or offering for sale, within the United States, subsequent to April 14, 1998, and without the
express or implied authority or consent of Hildebrand, the invention described in Claims 1-14
of United States Patent No. 5,737,981.

12. As a direct proximate result of Defendants infringing acts, Hildebrand has been damaged

in amounts to be determined at trial.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -3-
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13. Plaintiff further alleges, on information and belief, that Defendant has committed the
infringing act as alleged herein after having been notified of the fact that said acts infringed
U. S. Patent No. 5,737,981, and therefore said Defendants’ infringing acts have been and are
being committed willfully and intentionally.

14. As a result of the facts alleged in paragraph 13, Hildebrand is entitled to an increase in

damages, and an award of attorney’s fees and costs, pursuant to 35 U.S.C. 284 and 285.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Injunction)
15. Hildebrand incorporates paragraphs 1 through 14 as fully set forth at this point.
16. As a result of Defendants’ infringing acts, Hildebrand is suffering, and unless

Defendants’ infringing acts are enjoined will continue to suffer, irreparable and incalculable
damage.

17. Hildebrand is therefore entitled to, and prays for, a preliminary and permanent injunction
under 35 U.S.C. 283, barring Defendants, and all parties acting by, through or on behalf of
said Defendants, from engaging in any further manufacture, use, sale, offering of sale, or
exploitation of any products or devices which infringe Hildebrand’s Patent

WHEREFORE, Hildebrand prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Seizure and/or destruction of infringing goods)

18. Hildebrand incorporates paragraphs 1 through 17 as though fully set forth at this point.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -4-
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19. Hildebrand alleges on information and belief that as a result of Defendants’ infringing
acts there exists, within the United States, devices and materials which infringe Hildebrand’s
patent as well as marketing and promotional materials in which said infringing devices are
offered for sale, in violation of 35 U.S.C. 271(a).

20. Pursuant to 35 U.S.C. 283 Hildebrand prays for an order directing the immediate seizure

and/or destruction of all of said infringing devices and related marketing materials.

WHEREFORE, Hildebrand prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Accounting)
21. Hildebrand incorporates paragraphs 1 through 20 as though fully set forth at this point.

22. Hildebrand is informed and believes that Defendants have realized income as a result of
their infringing acts.
23. Hildebrand requests that Defendants be ordered to furnish full accounting of all such

income or other value realized from their infringing acts.

WHEREFORE, Hildebrand prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Imposition of constructive trust)
24. Hildebrand incorporates paragraphs 1 through 23 as though fully set forth at this point.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES - =5
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25. Hildebrand is informed and believes that Defendants have realized and continue to

realize income from their infringing acts.

26. Hildebrand requests that all income realized by Defendants from their infringing

acts be placed in constructive trust for the benefit of Hildebrand.

WHEREFORE, Hildebrand prays for judgment as hereinafter set forth.

V. PRAYER FOR DAMAGES

Hildebrand seeks the following relief:

1. General Damages.

2. A preliminary and permanent injunction barring Defendants, and all persons acting by,
through or on their behalf, from using, making, distributing, selling or offering for sale
any devices currently sold, or any other devices, which infringe U. S. Patent 5,737,981.

3. An order directing the immediate seizure and/or destruction of all devices which

infringe U. S. Patent No. 5,737,981

4. Punitive damages according to proof.

5. Enhanced damages according to proof.

6. An award of all costs and attorney’s fees incurred in this action.

7. An award of any other costs associated with the filing and maintaining of this action

that the Court can enter, using its inherent power.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -6-
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PLAINTIFF DEMANDS A TRIAL BY JURY AS TO ALL CAUSES.

Respectfully submitted this é day of September, 2009

David L. Hildebrand ¢
Plaintiff Pro-Se

975 East 58" Ave. Unit-A
Denver, Colorado 80216
(303) 995-9533 PH.
(303) 466-1938 FAX.

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES -7-
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United States Patent .9 (113 Patent Number: 5,737,981
Hildebrand 1451 Date of Patent: Apr. 14, 1998
[54] REMOVAL DEVICE FOR THREADED Primary Examiner—James G. Smith
CONNECTING DEVICES Attorney, Agent, or Firm—Rick Martin
[76] TInventor: David Lewis Hildebrand, 135 Gay 5t.,  [57] ABSTRACT
Longmont. Colo. 80501 A removal device adapted for the removal of difficult to
) remove threaded connecting devices threaded in a first
1] Appl No.: 825,885 direction. The device includes a body having a first end and
[22] Filed: Apr. 2, 1997 a second end. wherein the first end includes an opening
. which extends toward the second end of the body. The
Related U.S. Application Data opening is sized to receive a threaded connecting device

S threaded in a first direction and continuously tapers from a
[63] Continuation of Ser No. 531,336, Sep. 20, 1995, sbandoned. g = af the first end 10 & Secom o e

[51] Imt. CLS B25B 13/56  exfends toward the second ¢nd, wherein the first diameter is
[52] U.S.ChL 81/53.2; 81/120 larger than the second diameter. The opening further
58] Field of Search ... 817532, 120, 121.1,  inciudes ar internal surface threaded in direction opposite

81/124.6, 186  the threading of the threaded connecting device which must
be removed. The device further includes structure for rotat-
{56] References Cited ing the body when it is positioned over the threaded con-
necting device, wherein rotation of the body causes the
US. PATENT DOCUMENTS
internal threading of the removal device to engage the

}:;g.;oi%g lggﬁ Lo T 81;152230 threaded connecting device causing the threaded connecting
MoGUCKIR oorreoceers it e device to rotate in a direction appropriate for the removal of

2521910 9/1950 Goldberg .....cncrionenee. SL532 X eaded s : caded i i

3,161,090 1271964 MoLellan ..o BIS32 g, Cad6 CORRECting devics threaded In the fist direc-

3,996,819 12/1976 King 31/124.6 )

4,671,141 6/1987 Hansom .....usereneecnns S— - B1/53.2

5,551,320 971996 Horobec et al. .uveerecneeneceens 811532 14 Claims, 1 Drawing Sheet
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REMOVAL DEVICE FOR THREADED
CONNECTING DEVICES

CROSS-REFERENCED PATENTS
This is 2 Continuing application from U.S. patent appli-
cation Scr. No. 08/531.336. filed Sep. 20, 1995. now abaa-
doned.

BACKGROUND OF THE INVENTION

1. Ficld of the Invention

The invention relates to a device for the removal of
threaded connecting devices. More particularly, the inven-
tion relates to an internally threaded removal device for the
removal of threaded connecting devices, wherein the
removal device is threaded in a direction opposite to the
threading direction of the threaded connecting device.

2. Background of the Invention

Everyone is confronted at sometime with a nut that for
some reason cannot be removed from the object to which it
is secured, although the nut must be removed before the
individual can continue with the project he or she is under-
taking. -

In most instances the individnal must use tools mot
designed for the purpose of removing the nut. This ofien
results in further damage to the object to which the nut is
secured. For examiple. when the nut includes a hexagonal or
square shaped head designed for a specific size socket which
has been worn over time by use or abuse. the socket no
longer properly fits over the head. As a result, the put is not
able to be removed in the appropriate manner. The indi-
vidual must then somchow rotate the put. This is often
attempted with a wrench vice grips. or other tool. mot
designed for the job.

Anecmpts have been made to overcome this preblem by
providing tools which will cngage and rotate the nut.
However. these attempt have met with only limited sucoess.
For example, U.S. Pat. No. 3,161,090 to McLellan discloses
a st engaging wreach having a fluted gripping sirface.
The wreach is provide with a plurality of flutes desigeed to
engage the threads of a stud. The helix of the flutes is
designed to cooperate with the direction of the tireads of the
stud 50 as to be opposite thereto. The flutes directly engage
the threads permitting removal of the stud when the wreach
is rotated. The use of flutes as disclosed by McLellan is,
however, limited in effectivencss due to the nature of the
flutes themselves. Specifically. the flutes disclosed by
McLellan are very much like the grooves in a drill bit. As
such, the flutes are designed to cagage textured surfaces, for
example, the threaded outer surface of a stud. in much the
same way a drill bit is most effective in through
textured materials. Similarly, U.S. Pat. No. 3,996,819 two
King discloses a socket wrench attachment for the removal
of a screw or aut. The attachment includes a conical opening
with 3 plurality of teeth positioaed therein. As stated
previously, the prior art devices for the removal of threaded
connecting devices are limited in their effectiveness.
Consequently. a need continues to exist for a device per-
mitting the simple and effective removal of threaded con-
necting devices. The present invention provides such a
device.

SUMMARY OF THE INVENTION

It is, thexefore. an object of the prescat invention to
provide a removal device adapted for the removal of
threaded connecting devices that are threaded in a first
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direction. The removal device includes a body having a first
end and a second end, wherein the first end includes an
opening extending toward the second end of the body. The
opening is sized to receive a threaded connecting device
threaded in a first dicection, and the opening continuously
tapers from a first diameter at the first end to a second
diameter as the opening extends toward the second end,
wherein the first diameter is larger than the second diameter,
The opening is defined by an internal surface threaded in a
direction opposite the threading of the threaded connecting
device. The removal device fusther includes structure for
rotating the body when it is positioned over the threaded
connecting device, wherein rotation of the body causes the
internal threading of the removal device to engage the
threaded connecting device to cause the threaded connecting
device to rotate in a direction appropriate for the removal of
the threaded connecting device.

| is another object of the present invention to provide a
removal device including at least one cutting notch on the
intemal surface, wherein the at least one cutting notch is
substantially pespendicular to the threading on the internal
surface defining the opening.

It is also an object of the present invention to provide a
removal device wherein the structure for rotating includes a
prajection on the second end. the projection being sized and
shaped for use with a socket.

1t is also another object of the present invention to provide
a removal device wherein the body is hollow as it extends
from the first end to the sccond end.

It is another object of the present invention to provide a
removal device wherein the opening is frustoconically
shape.

Other objects. advantages and salient features of the
inveation will become apparent from the following detailed
description, which taken in conjunction with the anncxed
deawings, discloses a preferred, but acn-limiting, embodi-
ment of the subject inveation.

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE DRAWINGS

FIG, 1 is & cross-sectional view of the removal device.

FIG. 2 is a top view of the removal device.

FIG. 3 is a bottom view of the removal device.

FIG. 4 is an aliernate embodiment of the removal device
with a handle secured thereto.

FIG. 5 is an isometric view of the removal device.

PESCRIPTION OF THE PREFERRED
EMBODIMENTS

The detailed embodiments of the present invention are
disclosed herein. ¥t should be understood. however. that the
disclosed embodiments are merely excmplary of the
invention. which may be embodied in various forms.
Thercfore. the details disclosed herein are not to be inter-
preted as limited, bat merely as the basis for the claims and
as a basis for teaching one skilled in the art how to make
and/or use the invention.

With reference to FIGS. 1-3, a removal device 10 adapted
for the removal of threaded connecting devices is disclosed.
For the purposes of the present application, use of the temm
“threaded connecting device(s)” should be understood to
refer to devices having a portion which must be rotated to
facilitate attachment of the connecting device 1o an object.
For example. the present removal device may be used with
convention bolt and aut arangements where internal thread-
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ing on the nut engages external threading on the bolt.
Alternately. the present removal device may be used with a
threaded bolt having a head intended to be engaged by a
socket. wrench, or other tool. to place the bolt within an
internally threaded hole. Similarly, the present removal
device could be used with a simple externally threaded stud
positioned within an internally threaded hole. These
examples should not be considered as limiting applications
for the present removal device, but merely as exemplary of
the many uses of the present device.

The removal device 10 includes a cylindrical body 12
having a first end 14 and a second end 16. The body 12 is
hollow as it extends from the first ead 14 to the second end
16 to permit studs and bolts to pass through the body 12 as
the removal device 19 is used. The hollow center 18 also
provides room for boring and threading tools used during the
manufacture of the removal device 10.

The first end 14 includes a frustoconical opening 2¢
which exteads toward the second ¢nd 16 of the body 12. The
frustoconical opening 20 is defined by an intemnal surface 22
of the body 12 adjacent the first end 14 of the body 12 In
the preferred embodiment, the opening 28 exteads only a
pottion of the distance between the first cnd 14 and the
sccond erd 16 of the body 12. In fact. the opening 20 in the
preferred embodiment extends only about one third of the
distance between the first end 14 and the second end 16 of
the body 12,

The opening 20 is sized to receive a threaded connecting
device threaded in a first direction. The opening 20 continu-
ously tapers from a first diameter 24 at the firstend 14 to a
second diameter 26 as it extends toward the sccond end 16,
wherein the first diameter 24 is larger than the second
diameter 26. The internal surface 22 of the body 12 defining
the opening 20 has threads 28 formed in a second direction
opposite to the first direction in which the threaded con-
necting device is threaded, That is, if the threaded connect-
ing device has a right hand threaxd (regular thread), then the
internal smface 22 of the body 12 will be threaded with a Jeft
bhand thread (reverse thread). - Similarly, if the threaded
connecting device has a left hand thread (reverse thread),
then the internal surface 22 of the body 12 will be threaded
with a right hand thread (regular thread). It should be
undesstood that while the threadiog 28 on the internal
surface 22 must be in a direction opposite the threading
direction of the threaded connecting device. the threading
and taper may vary in accordance with the application of the
removal device without departing from the spirit of the
present inveation.

The internal surface 22 defining the opening 20 may also
be provided with cutting notches 30 extending along the
internal suiface 22 in a direction approximately perpendicu-
lar to the threading 28. While three cutting notches 38 are
shown in FIG. 3, the removal device 19 may include as
many cutting notches as desired depending upon the appli-
catiog of the removal device, without departing from the
spirit of the present invention. Additional cutting notches
may be possible where the application of the removal device
permits. The cutting notches 3@ help the threads to cut into
the threaded connccting device to permit removal of the
thaeaded connecting device in a manser that will be dis-
cussed below.

A projection 32 is secured to the second end 16 of the
body 12. The projection 32 is sized and shaped for use with
a socket permitting the removal device 10 to be rotated when
it is placed over the threaded connecting device. As shown
in FIG, 2. the projection 32 may be hexagonal shaped foruse
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with hexagonal shaped sockets. Additionally, the second end
16 includes a square opening 34 designed for engagement
with conventional square conmecting elements used in
socket wrenches, and other tools, where differcat attach-
ments may be releasably secured to the wrench. While, the
preferred embodimeat is disclosed with a hexagonal shaped
projection 32. a variety of projection shapes and sizes could
be used without departing from the spirit of the present
invention. Similarly, the second end 16 of the body 12 could
be provided with a handle 36 facilitating rotation. without
departing from the spirit of the present invention (See FIG.
4 removal device 109).

In use, the removal tool is place over a threaded connect-
ing device with the frustoconical opening over the threaded
connecting device. For example. the removal tool could be
place over a worn aut secured to a bolt. The removal tool is
then rotated in a direction causing the threading oa the
internal surface to eagage the threaded connecting device by
catting into the outer surface thercof. Oace the threaded
connecting device is properly engaged, continued rotation of
the removal device causes rotation of the threaded connect-
ing device and ultimately removal of the threaded connect-
ing device from the object to which it was aitached.
Removal of the threaded connecting device in this manner is
achicved as a result of the fact that the internal surface of the
body is tweaded in a direction opposite to that of the
threaded connecting device. .

It should be understood that the body of the present
removal device can be mapufacture from a variety of metals
depending upon the application for which the device is
intended. The body could also be manufactured from plastic,
or other materials, where the application of the removal
device permits. In addition. the removal device can be made
in a variety of shapes and sizes depending upon the use of
the device.

‘While various preferred embodiments have been shown
and described, it will be understood that there is no intent to
limit the invention by such disclosure, but rather, is intended
10 cover all modifications and alternate constructions falling
within the spirit and scope of the invention as defined in the
appended claims.

I claimy:

1. Aremoval device adapted for the removal of difficult to
remove threaded connecting devices. comprising:

a body having a first end and a second end, the first end
including an opening which cxtends toward the second
end of the body;

the opening is defined by an internal surface of the body
and is sized 1o receive a threaded connecting device
threaded in a first direction. wherein the internal surface
is threaded in a second direction opposite the first
direction in which the threaded connecting device is
threaded; the opening continuousty tapers from a first
diameter at the first end to a second diameter as the
opening extends toward the second end, where, in the
first diameter is larger than the scoond diameter;

said opening extends cnly a poxtion of 2 distance between
the first end and the second end of the body;

said second end includes an opening designed for engage-
ment with conventional conpecting clements used in a
removal tool where different connecting elements may
be secured to the removal tool; and

wherein rotation of the bedy causes said threading on the
internal surface of the removal device {0 engage the
threaded connecting device causing the threaded con-
necting device to rotate in a direction appropriate for
the removal of the threaded connecting device.
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2. The device according to claim 1. wherein the internal
surface inciudes at Ieast one cutting notch.

3. The device according to claim 2, wherein said at least
one cuiting notch is substantially perpendicular to the
threading on the internal swrface defining the opening.

4. The device according to claim 2, wherein one to five
cutting notches are provided on the internal surface defining
the opening.

5. The device according to claim 3, wherein the cutting
notches are substantially perpendicular to threading on the
internal surface defining the opening.

6. The device according to claim 1, wherein said second
cnd further comprises a projection, the projection sized and
shaped for use with the consecting element.

7. the device according to claim &, wherein the projection
is hexagonal shaped.

8. The device according to claim 1. wherein the opening
is a square opening in the second end of the body.

9. The device according to claim 1. wherein the body is
hollow as it extends from the first ead to the second end.

19. The device according to claim 1, wherein the opening
has a circular aross-sectional shape.

11 The device accordieg to claim 1, wherein a handle is
secured to the second end of the body.

12. A removal device adapted for the removal of difficuit
to remove threaded connecting devices, comprising:

a cylindrical body having a first cad and a second end, the
body being hollow as it extends from the first end to the
second end;

the first end including a frustoconically shaped opening
which extends toward the second end of the body and
is defined by an internal surface of the body;

the opening is sized to receive a threaded connecting
device threaded in a first direction, and the opening
continwously tapers from a first diameter at the first ead
to a second diameter as the opening exteads toward the
second end. wherein the first diameter is larger than the
second diameter;

10
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the internal surface of the body is threaded in a second
dnectmnoppos:tctbcﬁrstdmctmnmwhxdaﬂ:e
threaded connecting device is threaded; and

a projection secured to the second cad of the body, the

Monmzedmdmapedforuscwﬂhasockct
permitting the removal device to be rotated when it is
placed over the threaded connmecting device to be
removed, wherein rotation of the body causes the
threading on the internal surface of the removal device
to engage the thweaded connecting device causing the
tiweaded connecting device to rotate in a direction
appropriate for the removal of the threaded connecting
device.

13. A removal device adapted for the removal of difficult

to remove threaded connecting devices. comprising:

a body having a first end and a second end. the first end
including an opening which extends toward the second
ead of the body;

the opening is defined by an intemal surface of the body
and is sized to reccive a threaded connecting device
threaded in a first direction. wherein the internal surface
is threaded in a second direction opposite the first
direction in which the threaded connecting device is
threaded; the opening continuously tapers from a first
diameter at the first end to a second diameter as the
opening extends toward the second end, whercin the
first diameter is larger than the second diameter; and

said second end of the body baving a handle affixed
thereto so that when the body is positioned over the
threaded connecting device, rotation of the body causes
said threading on the internal surface of the removal
device to engage the threaded connecting device caus-
ing the threaded comnecting device to rotate in a
direction appropriate for the removal of the threaded
connecting device.

14. The device according to claim 1, wherein the removal

tool is a wrench.
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